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17. DESCRIPTION
( Check One)

10 Good Fair Det»rlorot»d D Ruins D Unexposed

(Check One)

Kl Unaltered

(Check One)

d K OriginolSite

ESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (H known} PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The mansion is a three story Baroque style with two caryatids support-

ing the balcony over the elaborate entrance porch. The house is

forty feet wide along thenorth front and about seventy feet deep,

rectangular in overall shape. There are many figures and ornamental

groups carved in the Bedford limestone exterior. Hand wrought

ornamental iron in the Baroque style forms the balconies, window

grills, porches, and railings. The mansard roof is topped by a hand

wrought copper fence and bordered by a stone cornice with repetitive

square carving. A large copper cupola caps the square northeast

corner bay of the house. There are bulls-eye windows in the mansard
- one on the west, one on the north, and one on the east. A fourth

bulls-eye window is located in the northeast wall of the northeast

corner bay. A small tower on the southeast corner is capped by an

elaborate copper roof above the stone cornice. The exterior of this

building is considered to be of the Louis XV style that spread to all

the capitals of Europe. A large stained glass window combining

figures and flowers in a springtime motif extends from the main

stairway landing to the second floor. It is the work of a famous

Belgian artist who came to Chicago especially to work out the details

and then returned to Belgium to personally supervise the firing of the

glass and making of the window. The result is a work of art noted in

this field throughout the world.
The whole interior displays a rare mixture of German, Austrian

and Hungarian influenced architectural motifs. Upon entering the

foyer, one immediately notices the huge fireplace on the east wall

with marble columns facing the magnificient staircase leading to the

second floor. Directly ahead is the wishing well complete with

running water and a life-size statue of the legendary boy and girl

lovers. The walls are of Italian mosaic and Scagliola marble beautif.

ully arranged in panels with an overlay of gilded ornamental plaster

molding. Lavish wrought iron is used as decoration on the stairway,

as lighting fixtures, and as ornamentation. This work was executed

in Germany by skilled craftsmen and exhibited at the Columbian

Exposition in 1893 prior to being iastalled in the building. It

received the grand prize of merit both for design and craftsmanship.

The library of Gothic revival architecture was brought from

Europe where it mas designed and erected - then dismanteled and

shipped to Chicago to be erected again. This room is on the right as

you enter the foyer. The wood paneling, ceiling beams, molding, and

sliding doors consist of East Indian mahogany with a French polish

finish. The fireplace is said to have been removed from an old

European castle and the woodwork designed and built around it. The

walls above the dados are finished with exquisite gold and silk

tapestry woven especially for this room.

The drawing room, on the left as you enter, is French Renaissance

in design with large hand-sculptured gypsum figures, heavy relief

moldings and cornices done in the Baroque style. A square bay diagon

al to this room projects at the northeast corner. The opening into

this bay is framed by an arched lintel which is supported by an ornate

spiral column on one side and a life-size caryatid on the other.

A^axwwjfvlt.sl.ian marble fireplace highlighted in gold leaf with a
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.7. DESCRIPTION con't.
huge mirror covers the east wall. - - •*.*.!.
scenes and figures in oil is the work of several artists famous in this

field. The walls are covered in a French brocade especially woven

in France for the mansion. ,.

Located between the drawing room and the dining room along the

east side of the building is the music room with East Indian mahogany

woodwork and French silk tapestry walls and a Brazilian Onyx fireplace.

The light fixtures are of gilded bronze in this room and of fine

Venetian glass in the drawing room.
.

The dining room, in the southeast corner, is of Flemish design

with quarter sawn oak cut and assembled in one of. Chicago's own

wood working shops. The wood was imported and cured for a number of

years, then painstakingly designed, cut, and finished into beams,

paneling and frames. The figures were first executed in clay in

Germany, then shipped to Chicago where they were carved into the wood

by hand. There is neither the slightest crack nor flaw m any of

these pieces, even after seventy three years of exposure. The glass

panels used in this room were imported from Venice and are of exquisite

design, one of them being the arms of the city of Chicago. The

west wall has a buffet and paneling in medieval designs. On the east

wall is a large fireplace and in the southeast corner a small breakfast

The floors of the library, drawing room, music room, and dining

room are of the parquet type, oak in a herringbone pattern. All the

hardware was especially designed and cast for each room. Each room

is separated from the next by heavy sliding doors of oak or mahogany.

The large butler's pantry and kitchen have white marble floors

and a high marble wainscoting on the walls of the latter. Ascending

the grand staircase, the west wall is dominated by the enormous

stained glass window extending from the landing to the top of the

second floor. At the landing the staircase becomes double, a

narrower stair on each side leading to the second floor. The hall of

the second floor repeats that of the fir»t in general design and finish

with Scagliola marble frames, lower panels,and door arches. The

panels from rail height to ceiling are finished in a woven wool and

silk covering. The ceiling itself is heavy with ornamental floral

designs and figured plaster cornices.

The walls of the master bedrooms are finished in smooth plaster

and the ceilings with ornate plaster reliefs. All the woodwork is of

fine mahogany and the floors of white oak in parquet.

The ballroom covers two thirds of the third floor and is of

Louis XVI design. The walls are paneled from chair rail to ceiling in

wood, heavily coated in a permanent type of cream enamel, with floral

decorations in each distinctly different panel. The beams and cornices

are of heavily ornamented plaster supported by Scagliola marble columns.

Between the columns on the north wall are large floor to ceiling

mirrors. The floors are strip type tongue and groove white oak,

heavily waxed and polished. Upwards of two hundred people can be

accommodated for dancing or banquets. There are adjoining service (con , t)
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rooms and a dumb waiter connecting with the first floor so as to

hurriedly speed food from the kitchen. At the time it was built the

house was considered one of the finest in Chicago, where there were

many ballrooms in private homes. Through the building one notices

the especially designed hardware for its beauty as well as its

utilitarian purposes, each room having its individually designed set.

As one wanders through this building and studies each room, one

cannot help but realize how many years of talent, craftsmanship and

pride have been devoted to its construction. Each workman, each

artist, the designers and architects have put a special something of

themselves into every detail. As a result a unique mansion was built,

and is still standing to the lasting credit of each.

A coach house with servants quarters was located at the rear

(south end) of the site. It was removed in 1953. Only a few pieces

of the ornate wrought iron fence are still standing.

Adjoining the side yard (to the east) of the house is the former

home of August Dewes, the brother of Francis Dewes, which was built

in a complimentary style with identical iron work. (509 Wrightwood)

8. SIGNIFICANCE (Statement of Significance con't.)

18th century Louis XV revival, of the style that was popular in Vienna

when Hercz was living there.
.

The Dewes family lived in the great baroque mansion for almost a

quarter of a century. On July 1, 1920, the Swedish Engineers Society

purchased the mansion for their clubhouse and headquarters. The

Society still owns and occupies the mansion. Since it has had but two

owners, it is reasonably unaltered. A new interior stairway was install,

ed in 1921. A fire escape was added in 1948 and in 1953 the three

story brick coach house was demolished. Most of the elaborate iron

fence and gates that joined the Francis Dewes house to the August

Dewes house have disappeared. A wall between two bedrooms cm the 2nd

floor has been removed to create a single large room.

This house is still greatly admired for its elegant facade and

interior, the craftsmanship exhibited in its every room, and the

richness of the materials used in its construction. The immediate

impression of a visitor walking around this mansion is as though he

were walking through some palace of the Bourbons or the Hapsburgs.

The design, decor, and workmanship is of authentic eightenth century

qrandeur, a type rarely created outside of Europe.

By some rare stroke of luck this house has survived the ravages

of time and progress that have clamed so many others in the past

twenty years. And it is undoubtedly one of the very last of the great

homes that once graced the North and South shore areas of Chicago.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Date of construction, 1894 - 1896

Architects, Adolph Cudell and Arthur Hercz.

Landmark site (legal description of property)

Lot 5 of H.M.Hobart's subdivision of lots 15 to 19 inclusive and

the alley southwest of and adjacent to lots 17, 18, and 19 in

Subdivisionof Blocks 1 and 2 of Out lot A of Wrightwood, being

a Subdivision of the southwest quarter of Section 28-40-14.

Recorded November 27, 1860.

This is a corner lot, the main entrance faces north on Wrightwood

Ave.
Historic Ba(Aground
In 1894 forty-nine year old Francis Joseph Dewes, wealthy Chicago

brewer, purchased the site from Helga A. Haugen, executor for the

estate of Henry M. Hobart, and commissioned architects Adolph Cudell

and Arthur Hercz to design a house for him.

German born (Aix La Chapelle) Cudell had imigrated to Chicago

immediately after the great Chicago fire of 1871. He had not been

in the city long when Cyrus McCormick asked him to design a great

French style mansion on Rush St. By 1894 when Dewes commissioned

him to design the mansion, Cudell was one of the best known

architects in Chicago. One of his most famous designs was Aldine

Square, as also was the Perry H. Smith house on Pine and Huron. He

likewise built a row of houses on Indiana Ave. between Sixteenth

and Eighteenth streets on the west side of Indiana, now destroyed.

Francis Joseph Dewes was a man of education and culture. He

was the son of a prominent German brewer who became a member of the

German parliament. He had come to Chicago in 1868 and by 1882 had

established his own brewery company. By 1894 he had accumulated

considerable wealth and had established himself as one of the fore-

most brewers of Chicago. He wanted a home which would reflect his

tastes in old world art and culture, and had money enough to comand

the very best. For years the great villa he had built was one

of the most grandiose and admired homes in Chicago.

Arthur Hercz was also a European trained artist who had become

a recognized artist in Germany before he came to Chicago in 1882 as

manager of a furniture manufacturing firm. As a young man Hercz had

studied in Vienna where he had founded the short-lived Kunstgewerbe

Jornal. The Dewes house, which he helped design, is almost pure

(See Continuation Sheet number two)
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10. GEOGRAPHICAL DATA

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES
DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY

CORNER

Degrees Minutes Se

LATITUDE LONGITUDE

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES
DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY

OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES

Degrees Minutes

41° 55
'

50

LON6I TUDE

Degress Minutes Seconds

87° 38' 29"

APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERT Y; 3/4
iLIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STA fE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

ffiU FORM PREPARED BY

ORGAN! ZATION

SrVMikell C.Darling Curator - Conservator-

Mrs _ Lawrence B. Perkins

—

Trustee

STREET AND NUMBER:
Evans ton Historical Society

DATE

27 Jan. 1973

225 Greenwood
CITY OR TOWN:

Evans ton
rfi"

:

$tAtI''MA«$0R OP*leE^lRWjCAlJOF

As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-

tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law

89-665). I hereby nominate this property for inclusion

in the National Register and certify that it has been

evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set

forth by the National Park Service. The recommended

level of significance of this nomination is:

National CI State LocaI ^

Illinois 17

NATIONAL REGISTER VEfttP.CAT.Qf*

I hereby certify that this property is included in the

National Register.

Chief, Office of Archeology and Historic Presetvatic

Keeper of The National Register
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Name of Site:

Common Swedish Engineers Society

Historic t»«U»l»Jl House
pewes

Location:

Street and Number Township Section

503 Wrightwood
City or Town Zip Code Range J4 Section

Chicago
County
Cook

Classification:

Category (check one) Integrity (check one)

( ) District (x) Building

( ) Site ( ) Structure
( ) Altered (x) Unaltered

( ) Moved (x ) Original Site

Ownership: Status (check one)

(x) Private

( ) Public

(x ) Occupied
( ) Unoccupied
( ) Preservation work in progress

5
Ul

X
O

Q

£

Access to Public

( ) Yes ( ) Restricted ( ) Unrestricted

Present Use (check one or more)

( ) Agricultural

( ) Commercial

( ) Educational

( ) Entertainment

( ) Government

) Industrial

) Military

) Museum
) Park

) Private Residence

5. Ownership of Property:

Owner's Name Swedish Engineers Society

Street and Number

City or Town

State County

(x) No

( ) Religious

( ) Scientific

( ) Transportation

^ ) Other (specify)
Fraternal

Phone Number

Zip Code

Description: Baraque Mansion

(x) Excellent ( ) Good ( ) Fair ( ) Deteriorated ( ) Ruins ( ) Unexposed

Is there a program of preservation underway? (x) Yes ( ) No



Historical Themes: (check one or more of the following)

) Archeological Site

) Archeological Site

) French Influence

) Illinois Frontier

) Illinois Early

) Illinois Middle
Illinois Late)

) Famous People

Specific Date: 1896

(Pre-Columbian)
(Post-Columbian to 1673)
(1673-1780)
(1780-1818)
(1818-1850)
(1850-1900)
(1900-present)
(give names & dates)

Areas of significance (check one or more of the following)

Aboriginal (historic)
Aboriginal (pre-historic)

Agriculture
Architecture
Art
Commerce
Conmiunication
Conservation
Education
Engineering
Industry
Invention
Landscape Architecture

Literature
Military
Music
Political
Religion/Philosophy
Science
Sculpture
Social/Humanitarian
Theater
Transportation
Urban Planning
Other (specify)

Brief statement of significance: (include all names and dates)
Use additional sheets if necessary. Home of Francis Dewfes, Chicago brewer and

collector of Old World art.

9. Form prepared by:

Name and Title: Date: 6/23/75

Organization: Phone :

Street and Number:

City or Town: County: Zip Code

During the course of the Survey we often find It necessary to search for a

particular site. When filling out the Survey form, please list according to the
following example, published references to the site for which forms are being
completed. If a bibliography can be compiled, it will greatly deduct from the Survey's
task.
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